
 

 
 

 
 

AGENDA PAPERS FOR 
 

TRAFFORD COVID-19 PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT BOARD 
 

Date: Wednesday, 10 March 2021 
 

Time:  10.00 am 
 

Place:  Virtual meeting: 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCjwbIOW5x0NSe38sgFU8bKg 

 
 

A G E N D A   PART I Pages  
 

1.  ATTENDANCES   
 
To note attendances, including officers, and any apologies for absence. 
 

 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
Members to give notice of any interest and the nature of that interest relating 
to any item on the agenda in accordance with the adopted Code of Conduct. 
 

 

3.  MINUTES   
 
To receive and, if so determined, to approve as a correct record the Minutes 
of the meeting held on 24.02.21. 
 

1 - 4 

4.  UPDATE ON THE CURRENT COVID-19 SITUATION IN TRAFFORD   
 
Update from the Director of Public Health 
 

5 - 10 

5.  10 POINT PLAN UPDATE   
 

 

(a)   Mass Testing in Trafford   
Verbal update from the Consultant in Public Health 
 

 

(b)   Mass Vaccination in Trafford   
Verbal update from the Associate Director of Primary Care, Trafford 
Clinical Commissioning Group 
 

 

(c)   Update and Escalations from the Community Engagement Team    



Trafford Covid-19 Public Engagement Board - Wednesday, 10 March 2021 
   

 

 

Verbal update from the Head of Regulatory Services 
 

(d)   Update and Escalations from the Community Enforcement Group   
Verbal update from the Strategic Manager Crime and Anti-Social 
Behaviour 
 

 

6.  PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT BOARD ACTIVITY AND FEEDBACK   
 
All Board Members 
 

 

7.  ANY OTHER BUSINESS   
 
To consider any other items of business not on the agenda which need to be 
considered by the Board before the next confirmed meeting. 
 

 

 
 
SARA TODD 
Chief Executive 
 
 
Membership of the Committee 
Council Leader or named Elected Member, nominated leads from opposition parties  
VCSE representatives – including specialists relating to key population groups (older 
people; BAME; children; mental health , Learning Difficulties), Partnerships lead, 
Communications lead, Director of Public Health, Director of Adult Social Services, 
Director for Children’s Services, Neighbourhood representatives, Clinical 
Commissioning Group representative, Trafford Local Care Organisation representative, 
Healthwatch Representative 
 
Further Information 
For help, advice and information about this meeting please contact: 
 
Fabiola Fuschi,  
Tel: 07813 397611 
Email:  fabiola.fuschi@trafford.gov.uk 
 
This agenda was issued on Monday 8th March 2021 by the Legal and Democratic 
Services Section, Trafford Council, Trafford Town Hall; Talbot Road, Stretford, 
Manchester, M32 0TH  
 
WEBCASTING 
  
This meeting will be filmed for live and / or subsequent broadcast on the Council’s 
website and / or YouTube channel https://www.youtube.com/user/traffordcouncil 
The whole of the meeting will be filmed, except where there are confidential or exempt 
items. 
 
If you make a representation to the meeting you will be deemed to have consented to 
being filmed. By entering the body of the Committee Room you are also consenting to 
being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings for 

https://www.youtube.com/user/traffordcouncil


Trafford Covid-19 Public Engagement Board - Wednesday, 10 March 2021 
   

 

 

webcasting and/or training purposes. If you do not wish to have your image captured or 
if you have any queries regarding webcasting of meetings, please contact the 
Democratic Services Officer on the above contact number or email 
democratic.services@trafford.gov.uk  
 
Members of the public may also film or record this meeting. Any person wishing to 
photograph, film or audio-record a public meeting is requested to inform Democratic 
Services in order that necessary arrangements can be made for the meeting. Please 
contact the Democratic Services Officer 48 hours in advance of the meeting if you 
intend to do this or have any other queries. 
 

mailto:democratic.services@trafford.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

Trafford Covid-19 Public Engagement Board  
 
 Wednesday 24th February 2021 – 10:00 a.m. – Virtual meeting   
 
Present:  
Councillor Freeman (Chair) Executive Member for Covid-19 Recovery and Reform   
Councillor Newgrosh  Leader of the Liberal Democrats Group, Trafford Council  
Councillor Welton Ward Member for Altrincham, Trafford Council 

Councillor Cordingley Member of the Health Scrutiny Committee, Trafford Council 

Councillor Lloyd Member of the Health Scrutiny Committee, Trafford Council 

Councillor Acton Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, Trafford Council 

Eleanor Roaf Director of Public Health, Trafford Council  
Nigel Smith Head of Regulatory Services, Trafford Council  
Simone Onyemem Voluntary, Community Social Enterprise (VCSE) Representative, 

African Caribbean Care Group 
Khan Moghal Chair, VoicebeMet 
Donna Sager Consultant in Public Health, Trafford Council 
Helen Gollins 
Neill Courtney 

Consultant in Public Health, Trafford Council 
Violence Reduction Co-ordinator, Trafford Council  

Ellie Caddick Covid-19 Communications Lead, Trafford Council 
Tracy Clarke Communications and Engagement Specialist, Trafford CCG 
George Devlin Lay Member for Patient and Public Participation, Trafford CCG 
Jilla Burgess-Allen 
Eve Mannerings 
Aliya Bukhari 

Consultant in Public Health, Trafford Council 
Trafford CCG 
VoicebeMet 

Molly Shaw Governance Services, Trafford Council 
Alexander Murray Governance Officer, Trafford Council  
  
 
 

 Item Decision / Action Key Person for 
Action 
 

1. Welcome and 
apologies 
 

Apologies were received from Helen Grant, Laura 
Hobbs, Dorothy Evans and Michelle Hill 

 
 
 

2. Minutes Agreed 
 

 

 

3. Membership  There had been no changes to the Membership since 
the last meeting.   

 

4. Update on the 
current Covid-19 
situation in 
Trafford  

The board agreed: 
1. To note the update; 
2. To note that the rate of infection remains high and 

the rate of reduction has stalled; with a rate of 
infection of 130 per 100,000 people; 

3. To note the importance of children going back to 
school on the 8th March however it is likely that the 
rate of infection will increase again due to increased 
social mixing; 

 
All 
All 
 
 
All 
 
 
 

Document Pack Page 1



 2 

4. To note the importance of protecting vulnerable 
people by encouraging the uptake of the vaccine; 

5. That the presentation shown and government 
guidance is to be circulated to all board members 
and elected members; 

6. To note there will be another elected member 
briefing with the Public Health team in two weeks; 

7. To note that face covering, hand hygiene, social 
distancing and working from home are essential 
measures to manage the pandemic. 

All 
 
Public Health 
 
 
Public Health 
 
All 
 
 
 
 

5 10POINT 
ACTION PLAN 

  

5a. Mass Testing  The board agreed:  
1. To note that PCR and Lateral Flow testing is now 

available to key groups including businesses with 
over 50 staff; 

2. To note that over 5,500 tests have been carried 
out at the asymptomatic testing site at Trafford 
Town Hall displaying its effectiveness;  

3. To note care-home, NHS and teaching staff now 
have testing kits delivered directly to their 
workplace settings; 

4. To note the potential introduction of a ‘Community 
Collect model’ whereby having a number of sites 
throughout Trafford will allow people who aren’t 
able to go to central sites to collect their own 
testing kits. 

 
All 
 
 
All 
 
 
All 
 
 
All 

5b. Mass 
Vaccination  

The board agreed: 
1. To note the update; 
2. To note the success of the vaccination 

programme in Trafford; with increasing uptake in 
the North of the borough; 

3. To note the extra vaccination sites in the North of 
the borough at Limelight and Seymour Grove; 

4. To encourage the uptake of the vaccine, 
especially for those living in North Trafford in 
more deprived areas; 

5. That the issues surrounding the uptake of the 
vaccine in the North will be fed back to the CCG 
and an update will be provided at the next 
meeting. 

 
All 
All 
 
 
 
All 
 
 
All 
 
 
CCG 

5c. 
 

Update and 
escalations from 
the COVID-19 
Community 
Engagement 
Group 

The board agreed: 
1. To note the work that has been done in the North 

of the borough around vaccine hesitancy; through 
weekly meetings, messaging into Friday prayers 
and working with local groups such as Voice of 
BME. 

2. To note the Communications team are monitoring 
social media posts and removing harmful or 

 
All 
 
 
 
 
Comms 
 

Document Pack Page 2



 3 

inaccurate comments while still allowing healthy 
conversations between residents; 

3. To note the need for messaging in different 
languages and for the Communications team to 
circulate this material to the CCG. 

 
 
Comms/CCG 
 

5d. Update and 
escalations from 
the Community 
Enforcement 
Group 

The board agreed: 
1. To note that the number of non-compliant reports 

is decreasing however they are expected to 
increase after the Prime Minister’s 
announcement. 

 

 
All 
 

6. Public 
Engagement 
Board Activity 
and Feedback 

None.  

7. Any Other 
Business  

None. 
 

 

8. Date of Next 
Meeting 

Wednesday 10th March 2021 at 10:00am   
 
 

 

Document Pack Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to: Public Engagement Board  

Date: 10/03/2021 

Report of: COVID-19 Programme Team 

CLT Lead: Eleanor Roaf, Director Public Health Trafford  

 

Report Title: Data surveillance update paper to Public Engagement Board  

 

Report Summary:  

This paper provides an update on the current data position for COVID-19 within Trafford and 

provides comparative information with other GM localities. Data insights into any potential 

trends are provided based on best available public health information and intelligence 

available.  

 

Overview of the current position 

 
• Over the most recent 7-day period (25/02-06/03) we have seen a reduction in the 

number of cases of Covid-19 in Trafford 
 

• There were 159 confirmed cases in Trafford during the week of February 25 – March 

03, a rate of 67.0/100,000 residents. The highest number of cases on a single day was 

on Thursday February 25th, with 40 cases.  

• Rates are decreasing more slowly in Greater Manchester than in England as a whole.  

Trafford has the lowest rate within GM. 

• Fewer people went for a test in the last week, but our positivity rate has also fallen and 

is now 4.6%.  

• Rates have dropped in all age groups, with only our 20-29 year olds having rates over 

100/100,000 population.  

• Rates in people aged 65+ are 43.7/100k, down from 65.7/100k from the previously 

reported week (18/02-24/02).  

• Cases remain spread across the borough, but only two wards (Bucklow-St Martins & 

Broadheath) have rates over  100/100k, and nine of our 21 wards have rates below 

50/100k.  

• We continue to see new workplace outbreaks, although the size of the outbreaks are 

much smaller than previous weeks. We would urge all businesses to increase their 

efforts to make their workplaces covid secure and to encourage their staff to work from 

home wherever possible. The increased infectivity of the new strain means that all 

precautions need to be rigorously applied to minimise spread.  

• As we start to see pupils return to school, we are likely to see an increase in case rates 

as a result of increased social mixing.  We would not expect to see the increase to 

Document Pack Page 5



show for 10 days or so.  It is critical that people do not see the return of children to 

school as a green light for increased social activity. 

• Over 90% of residents in the 1-4 priority groups have been vaccinated, whilst over 95% 

have been vaccinated in residents aged 75 or over. 

• We are still seeing inequalities in vaccine uptake with lower uptake in some of our less 

affluent areas and in some BAME groups.  These populations have suffered badly in 

the pandemic so increasing uptake across the whole of Trafford is essential if we are 

to limit further harm. 

• We need to ensure that more people are confident in the safety and effectiveness of 

the vaccine, as well as making sure that vaccination sites are easily accessible, 

including to people who do not have private transport. 

  

 

Although our rates are dropping, we would like to emphasise the need for residents to continue 

to limit their social contacts, maintain social distancing, and keep good hand and respiratory 

hygiene habits at all times. It is especially important that residents continue to work from home 

wherever possible, and in particular the opening of schools should not be seen as an 

opportunity for people to start going into work.  People should continue to work from home 

wherever possible.  

Further progress has been made within the vaccination programme. In addition to the high 

percentage of residents within the 1-4 priority groups being vaccinated, almost 90% of 

residents aged 65-69 have now been vaccinated, and the programme has now been opened 

to everyone aged 56 or over.  The vaccine is very safe, and there is increasing evidence that 

it not only prevents serious illness but also reduces transmission of the virus.   We strongly 

encourage people to accept the offer of vaccination and thereby protect themselves and 

others.  

 

Contact Officer: 

Name:  Tom Seery, Public Health Data Surveillance Analyst 

Tel:  

Email: Thomas.Seery@trafford.gov.uk 

 

1.0 Distribution of COVID-19 cases within Trafford 

 

1.1 During the week 25 February – 03 March, there were a total of 159 confirmed cases in 

Trafford, equivalent to a rate of 67.0 per 100,000 residents.  

Document Pack Page 6

mailto:Thomas.Seery@trafford.gov.uk


1.2 Below (figure 1) is the epidemic curve for Trafford, indicating the total number of 

confirmed cases and 7-day rolling average since March 2nd.  

1.3 The rise in daily cases since the end of August is represented by the sharp rise in the 7-

day rolling average; indicating that total cases per day have consistently stayed high 

throughout the month of September, going into October.  

1.4 Throughout the first two weeks of October daily cases started to level out, however since 

week beginning October 19, Trafford experienced a sharp rise in daily cases, mostly 

greater than 150 confirmed cases per day. A subsequent sharp drop in cases followed 

October’s high case rates, hugely influenced by the national lockdown measures.  

1.5 Early December saw a gradual increase in cases, rising more sharply near the end of the 

month and going into early January. 

1.6 Trafford’s cases started to drop following the national lockdown. We started to see case 

rates stall over a 14-day period in mid-late February, however we are now starting to see 

a reduction in Trafford’s case rate.  

 

Source: PHE Covid-19 Situational Awareness explorer 

Figure 1. Epidemic curve of daily confirmed new cases 

Trafford, 02 March to 05 March 2021 

 

1.7 As of week ending March 03, we are seeing less variation in Trafford’s age-specific case 

rates, and including in Trafford’s 65+ age group. Current case rates (43.7/100k) have 

dropped from the previous 7-day period (65.7/100k). 

Document Pack Page 7



1.1 For Trafford’s older population, we were seeing slightly higher rates in residents aged 80 

years and over, however we have also see rates reduce for this age group over the past 

7 days, currently at 65/100k.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 2. Age-specific case rates per 100,000 

Trafford, 7-day moving average 

 

1.10 Trafford’s ‘White’ ethnic group, as of week ending March 03, contribute to the highest 

number of cases (210), followed by the ‘Asian / Asian British’ ethnic group (32). 

 
Table 1. Case count and incidence per 100,000 population by ethnicity 

Trafford, 25 February to 03 March 2021 
Source: PHE Daily COVID-19 Surveillance Reports 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(numbers under 5 suppressed) 

2.0 Geographical spread of COVID-19 in Trafford 

2.1 As is expected as case numbers drop, we are seeing volatility in the rates by ward.  We 

have seen reductions in 19 of our 21 wards over the most recent week (25/02-03/03).  

                                       Cases in last 7 days 

Ethnic group n Per 100,000 

Other - 136.4 

Black / Black British 6 91.7 

Asian / Asian British 12 66.8 

White 112 57.8 

Mixed - 49.7 

Document Pack Page 8



2.2 There are currently only two wards (Bucklow-St Martins & Broadheath) with rates over 

than 100/100k, and 9 wards have rates below 50/100k. 

2.3 We are seeing slightly higher rates in the West of the borough, predominantly as a result 

of higher case rates in the ward of Bucklow-St Martins (180.5/100k).  

3.0 Testing in Trafford 

3.1 Over the 7 day period ending March 06, the majority (89.3%) of COVID tests were 

conducted in our pillar 2 sites, consisting of all out-of-hospital testing sites.   

3.2 As of 3rd March, Trafford’s 7-day positivity rate is 4.6%, above the England average 

(3.8%).  

4.0 Comparative data of COVID-19 cases within the local authorities of Greater   

Manchester 

4.1 As shown in Figure 3 each of GMs boroughs is seeing reductions in rates, after a 

stalling in the decline previously.  

4.2 As of 4th March, Trafford has the lowest 7-day incidence rate in Greater Manchester.  

4.3 The grey line in figure 3 shows that rate reduction is much slower for GM than it is for 

the England average. 

 

Figure 3. Weekly incidence per 100,000 population by local authority 

Greater Manchester, 26 December to 04 March 2021 

 

 

 

Document Pack Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES
	4 UPDATE ON THE CURRENT COVID-19 SITUATION IN TRAFFORD

